

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Eighty-eighth and Eighty-ninth  
Legislatures

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

From April 24, 1937 to April 21, 1939

AND

MISCELLANEOUS STATE PAPERS

---

Published by the Secretary of State, in conjunction  
with the Revisor of Statutes in accordance with the  
Resolves of the Legislature approved June 28, 1820,  
March 18, 1840, March 16, 1842 and Acts approved  
August 6, 1930 and April 2, 1931.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL  
AUGUSTA, MAINE  
1939

---

---

PUBLIC LAWS

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Eighty-ninth Legislature

1939

---

---

ments and papers pertaining to said subject of inquiry and investigation. Said insurance commissioner, deputy insurance commissioner, and municipal officers may also administer oaths and affirmations to persons appearing as witnesses before them; and false swearing in any matter or proceeding aforesaid shall be deemed perjury and shall be punished as such. Said insurance commissioner and his subordinates shall have authority, at all times of the day or night, in the performance of the duties imposed by this chapter, to enter upon and examine any building or premises where a fire is in progress or has occurred, and other buildings or premises adjoining or near the same. All investigations held by or under the direction of the insurance commissioner, deputy insurance commissioner, or the municipal officers may in their discretion be private, and persons other than those required to be present by the provisions hereof may be excluded from the place where such investigation is held, and witnesses may be kept separate and apart from one another and not allowed to communicate with one another until they have been examined.'

Sec. 6. R. S., c. 35, § 56, amended. Section 56 of chapter 35 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 56. Municipal officers to keep record of returns. Municipal officers shall record or cause to be recorded, ~~in a book provided by the insurance commissioner,~~ all returns made under the provisions of the 6 preceding sections.'

Approved April 8, 1939.

---



---

## Chapter 193

### AN ACT Relative to the Office of Town Auditor.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 5, § 12, amended. Section 12 of chapter 5 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 12. Annual meetings; treasurers and collectors not to be selectmen or assessors; may be same person. Annual town meetings shall be held in March, and the voters shall then choose, by a majority vote, a clerk, 3, 5 or 7 inhabitants of the town to be selectmen and overseers of the poor, when other overseers are not chosen, 3 or more assessors, 2 or more fence viewers, a treasurer, surveyors of lumber, sealers of leather, measurers of wood and bark, constables, collectors of taxes, and other usual town officers; and if one third of the voters present are in favor thereof, they shall choose, by a majority vote, one auditor of accounts, all of whom shall be sworn. In towns of over 4,000 inhabitants the candidates receiving the

## CHAP. 194

greatest number of votes for any of the above mentioned offices shall be deemed elected to such offices. Treasurers and collectors of towns shall not be selectmen or assessors, until they have completed their duties as treasurers and collectors and had a final settlement with the town. The treasurer and collector of taxes of cities and towns may be one and the same person.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 5, § 15, repealed. Section 15 of chapter 5 of the revised statutes is hereby repealed.

Approved April 8, 1939.

## Chapter 194

### AN ACT Relating to Regulation of Pauper Expense for Conveyance of Children Attending the Public Schools.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

P. L., 1935, c. 91, amended. Chapter 91 of the public laws of 1935, as amended by chapter 115 of the public laws of 1937, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'Pauper expenses of towns, cities, plantations, and state, regulated; conveyance of school children. Any city, town or plantation ~~that has~~ which locates paupers ~~who reside~~ having children attending the public schools, in another city, town or plantation, ~~who have children attending the public schools~~ shall locate such paupers so that the city, town or plantation where they reside shall not be put to extra expense for conveyance of children to ~~primary~~ elementary or secondary schools; provided, however, that if the said city, town or plantation does not so locate said paupers, the said city, town or plantation shall reimburse the city, town or plantation wherein the said paupers reside for the extra expense so caused. The state shall locate its paupers so that the city, town or plantation in which they reside shall not be put to extra expense for conveyance of the children of said paupers to ~~primary~~ elementary or secondary schools; provided, however, that if the state does not so locate said paupers, the state shall reimburse the city, town or plantation wherein the said paupers reside for the extra expense incurred for said conveyance. For the purposes of this section the word "paupers" shall mean all persons who have been directly or indirectly furnished with pauper supplies, as such, within the 3 months next preceding the time when the extra expense for conveyance, as above described, was incurred. Expenses incurred by any town or by the state under this section may be paid from funds made available for relief of the poor but shall in no other respect be treated as pauper expense.'

Approved April 8, 1939.